
 
page 1 of 10 

 
CITY OF WEST LAFAYETTE 

COMMON COUNCIL 
PRE-COUNCIL MINUTES 

MAY 1, 2008 
 
 
 
The Common Council of the City of West Lafayette, Indiana, met in the Lower Level Conference 
Room at City Hall on May 1, 2008, at the hour of 4:30 p.m. 
 
In Mayor Dennis’ absence, Council President Hunt called the meeting to order and presided. 
 
Present:   Bunder, Burch, Hunt, Keen, Roales, and Truitt, who arrived at 4:35 p.m. 
 
Absent: Thomas. 
 
Also present were City Attorney Burns, Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes, City Engineer Buck, Police 
Chief Dombkowski, Street Commissioner Downey, Fire Chief Drew, Human Resources Director 
Foster, Assistant Director of Development Grady, WWTU Director Henderson, and Parks 
Superintendent Payne. 
  
Council President Hunt said as you know, we go through the agenda items, and a couple of 
things before we get to that, we will have a West Lafayette Beautification Award.  [Councilor] 
Vicki Burch will present it.  We haven’t done that since last fall, so that will be new on the 
agenda on Monday.  It does start at 6:30, as most of you know. 
 
Councilor Keen said do we get nominations to you for that?   
 
Council President Hunt said either me or [Redevelopment and Neighborhood Planner] Bev 
Shaw.  We welcome— 
 
Councilor Keen said I’ve got a couple names. 
 
Council President Hunt said okay, good.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I’ll recognize the arrival of Councilmember Truitt. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
Ordinance No. 15-08 An Ordinance Providing For The Payment Of Litigation Expenses 
Including Attorney Fees For Violations Of The City Code (Prepared by the City Attorney) 
 
Council President Hunt read the ordinance by title and asked City Attorney Burns to address 
this matter. 
 
City Attorney Burns said thank you.  In looking through the City Code, I’ve noticed various things 
that I think would be improvements, and this is one of them.  As most of you know, it’s not 
unusual, if there’s a trial for just about anything, whether it’s a contract claim or anything else, if 
there is a trial, when someone wins that trial, they often will say, “Hey, Judge, since I won I 
would now like to have my attorney fees paid.”  If there is either a statute or an ordinance, in this 
case, or it is part of a contract, then courts are free to award attorney fees.  It is an additional 
way for a court in an ordinance violation case to make an impact on the violator.  It is also a way 

Subject to approval at the June 2, 2008, Common Council Meeting. 

Internet
Text Box
                Approved at the June 2, 2008, Common Council meeting.



PRE-COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, MAY 1, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
page 2 of 10 

 

for the violator to bear the cost that that City has incurred, instead of having the citizens bear 
that cost.  And our City Code currently has a few places where the City may ask for attorney 
fees, but it is not by any means across the board.  I think it’s probably a more common practice 
to have a provision in City Code—the ones that I’ve seen and I’ve worked with in Lafayette and 
seen in other places—it is common to have a provision like this one that says, “In the event that 
there has to be litigation and if there is a trial, it is up to the judge to determine whether or not 
the party who loses has to pay the attorney fees for the prevailing party.”  So in our case, what 
I’m asking for the Council to consider is an ordinance amendment which would say, “In the 
event that there is litigation necessary to enforce an ordinance for our City, and there is a 
violation found by the court—it’s up to the court—that the court is free to award attorney fees, in 
addition to any other fines or charges that the court finds appropriate.”  So that’s what this does 
and I think it’s a very positive change, both from a fiscal standpoint for the taxpayers, as well as 
a very good and appropriate way to make sure that the burden of violation rests where it should, 
which is on the violator.   
 
Council President Hunt said questions? 
 
Councilor Burch said Mr. [City Attorney] Burns, would this be in effect—when would this go into 
effect? 
 
City Attorney Burns said it would be in effect upon second passage and publication. 
 
Councilor Burch said so prior bills— 
 
City Attorney Burns said wouldn’t apply. 
 
Councilor Burch said wouldn’t be affected.  Thank you. 
 
City Attorney Burns said that’s right. 
 
Councilor Roales said just as a point of clarification, how does the publication work?  Does this 
usually happen ten days after, or does it—? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said it must be published within 30 days after passage, to be effective 
in cases where there are fines or penalties involved. 
 
Council President Hunt said the disadvantage is if we lose, we have to pay their fees? 
 
City Attorney Burns said no, it’s not set up that way.  Which also isn’t unusual.  I wouldn’t say 
that that’s my novel drafting, though.  That’s merely doing what is the common practice.  Again, 
it’s only if there is a lawsuit, and it’s only if the court determines that it’s appropriate to work.  So 
it gives the court the ability to do it, but does not require that the court do it.   
 
Council President Hunt said any other questions on Ordinance No. 15-08? 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
 
Ordinance No. 16-08 An Ordinance To Amend Ordinance No. 24-07, Fixing The Biweekly 
Salaries Of Appointed Officers, Employees And Members Of The Police And Fire Departments 
Of The City Of West Lafayette, Indiana For The Year 2008 (Submitted by the Clerk-Treasurer) 



PRE-COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, MAY 1, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
page 3 of 10 

 

 
Council President Hunt read the ordinance by title, and asked Human Resources Director Diane 
Foster to address the Council on this issue. 
 
Human Resources Director Foster said this ordinance and the next one, Mayor Dennis and I are 
requesting the usual approval in two readings, two minor amendments to the two salary 
ordinances, and basically this is as a result of Mr. Henderson joining the City as Utility Director 
in April.  We are looking to change the Public Works Director position and filed both ordinances 
to Street Commissioner, which Mr. [Public Works Director] Downey will assume those 
responsibilities at some point in time down the road, after a transition period.  Currently, the 
Public Works Director is funded out of MVH and the Wastewater Utility, 50-50.  The salary has 
not changed, both salaries are the same, it’s just the distribution, 20% Wastewater and 80% 
MVH instead of the Street totally paying.   
 
Councilor Burch said run those percentages by me again, please. 
 
Human Resources Director Foster said 80% out of MVH and 20% out of the Wastewater Utility.  
There are a few employees of the Wastewater Collection System that report through David’s 
[Downey’s] department and so we thought that was an appropriate distribution. 
 
Councilor Burch said thank you. 
 
Council President Hunt said may I introduce David Henderson before we go on.  David 
Henderson is our new Director of the Wastewater Treatment Utility.  Is that the right title? 
 
Wastewater Utility Director Henderson said Utility Director, yes.  Thank you. 
 
Council President Hunt said he’s well-focused on this subject.  He was here, then he went to 
Warsaw? 
 
Wastewater Utility Director Henderson said yes. 
 
Council President Hunt said and he came back and hit the ground running. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the Board of Works on Tuesday did approve this and the 
Wastewater salary schedule. 
 
Council President Hunt said any questions about Ordinance No. 16-08? 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Ordinance No. 17-08 An Ordinance To Amend Ordinance No. 25-07, The 2008 Wastewater 
Treatment Utility Salary Schedule As Submitted By The Board Of Public Works And Safety For 
Approval By The Common Council Of The City Of West Lafayette, Indiana (Submitted by the 
Clerk-Treasurer) 
 
Council President Hunt said Ordinance No. 17-08 is somewhat similar.  Diane [Human 
Resources Director Foster], are you going to talk to us about this also? 
 
Human Resources Director Foster said well— 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, MAY 1, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
page 4 of 10 

 

Council President Hunt said are you going to talk to us about Ordinance No. 17-08 also? 
 
Human Resources Director Foster said that’s just the other salary ordinance, basically making 
the same changes—distribution and title. 
 
Council President Hunt said questions on that? 
 
Councilor Burch said yes, why do we need two? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the salary is split between the City salary schedule and the 
Wastewater Treatment Utility schedule. 
 
Councilor Burch said thank you. 
 
Council President Hunt said can I go back to—which one did you two on, Diane [Human 
Resources Director Foster]?  Diane, did you want two readings on Monday on both of these? 
 
Human Resources Director Foster said no. 
 
Council President Hunt said okay.  The May and June Council meetings will be fine.   
 
Council President Hunt said okay.  Any questions on that? 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Ordinance No. 18-08 An Ordinance Providing For Temporary Loans From A Fund Having 
Sufficient Balance To A Depleted Fund (Prepared by the Clerk-Treasurer) 
 
Council President Hunt read Ordinance No. 18-08 by title and asked Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes to 
address this. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said once again, I’m coming with a request for temporary loan 
authority.  I will be asking for two readings.  The County Treasurer urged all residents to pay 
their property tax bills early.   
 
Council President Hunt said any questions on this temporary loan? 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Resolution No. 10-08 A Resolution To Approve The West Lafayette Public Library Capital Funds 
Project (Prepared by the Clerk-Treasurer) 
 
Council President Hunt read the resolution by title and asked West Lafayette Public Librarian 
Schenkel to address this matter. 
 
Mr. Schenkel said thank you for the opportunity.  The Capital Projects Fund—basically public 
libraries in Indiana have controlled budgets, much as your budgets are controlled.  We can only 
do what the State says that we can do.  We have an Operating Fund, we have a Bond 
Redemption Fund, and we have the Library Capital Projects Fund, in terms of tax rates that we 
can collect.  The Library Capital Projects Fund we have been using, starting this year—the 
Council approved it last year—and we’re using it this year for very much the same services that 



PRE-COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, MAY 1, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
page 5 of 10 

 

we are proposing for 2009, 2010, and 2011, that is, maintenance and repairs to the Library 
Garage and computer services for the Library and the community that use the Library.  We are 
required to provide you with a rolling three-year plan, so every year we add a new year on to the 
plan, therefore this year we have 2011 added on.  We’re asking for no increase in the tax rate.  
We presume, although we don’t know, that the assessed valuation will go up a little bit.  Have 
you [Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes] heard anything about that? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I have, but it wouldn’t be the kind of news I’d to present today. 
 
Mr. Schenkel said we’re presuming an increase in the assessed valuation.  I realize that it may 
well not, and we’ll obviously adjust the budget to whatever we end up with, in terms of the 
assessed valuation. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the only anomaly with this capital plan presentation really results 
from the delay in having a budget order, and until they get their budget order, they don’t know 
exactly how much they’re going to get this year.  Therefore they can’t tell you their cash balance 
going forward.  If you’d look at that schedule they provided on the capital plan, there is a line for 
the cash balance.  That’s going to be unknown really until later in the year.  And that’s one of 
the things we consider, in terms of the tax rate, figuring the budget.  And if you know how much 
is going to be in excess of the budget or deficient in relation to the budget, you might be 
requested to adjust the tax rate.  I wouldn’t say there will be a large growth in assessed 
valuation, though.  
 
Mr. Schenkel said I can understand that.  And as Judy [Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes] said, whatever 
we present to the State for final approval, it’s presuming that you will approve this and it will go 
on to the State for their final approval.  And as you know, the State can only lower.  They cannot 
adjust up.  They can only adjust down.  And so if we can adjust down to meet the needs, we’ll 
certainly adjust down.  The Library Parking Garage was opened in the fall of 2004, so we’re 
coming up on four years in use.  It’s certainly been used a lot by Library patrons, by Morton 
Center patrons, by folks coming down for lunch and for using the Village in general.  We also 
note it’s being used a lot at night, just from digital observation, we can tell when there are a lot 
of people in there after the Library is closed and, you know, that’s part of Village development 
and seems to be fine.  In terms of computer services that, I hope not surprisingly, just continues 
to increase the use of computers in the Library by the staff, obviously, but, more importantly, by 
the community.  It just keeps growing and growing and growing, both the wireless internet 
service, which is becoming very popular, and the wired computers that are sitting there in the 
computer labs around the Library.  For a while I had seen a decrease in that usage, but that 
seems to be building up again as well, so more people are coming in and using those for 
various and sundry reasons.  We’re finding very good computer use in the children’s area, the 
adult area, the teen area, all across the board.  And I might just parenthetically, intriguingly to 
me at least, our circulation of children’s books, our checkout of children’s books, has never been 
higher.  The computers are being used a lot in that room, but the books are also just flying off 
the shelves, so to speak, which is, I think, a marvelous situation.  Hopefully, we are building 
readers for the future, as well as computer users for the future.  Our computer programs that are 
taught by Nancy Hartman of our staff are very, very popular, whether we offer them directly 
through the Library or through the WALLA folks.  We’re part of the WALLA education program.  
So the money is being used to increase the community’s access to the Library, to the Morton 
Center, to the Village area, and to all the computer users that we have in the Library.  And I’ll be 
glad to answer any questions, if you have any. 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, MAY 1, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
page 6 of 10 

 

Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I do have one question, which is how you manage your Capital 
Projects Fund.  The interest that’s earned on that fund, where is the interest receipted?  Does it 
remain within the Capital Fund, or is it remitted to another fund? 
 
Mr. Schenkel said the quick answer is that we haven’t received any interest yet, because we 
haven’t received any income.  I would think it would be a Board decision.  I would think it would 
go back to the Capital Projects Fund.  We are waiting, as I would guess you are, for income to 
come from property taxes. 
 
Council President Hunt said any other questions?  What is the Auto Excise, CVET stand for? 
 
Mr. Schenkel said Auto Excise and Commercial Vehicle Excise Tax.  The Commercial Vehicle 
for us varies—a couple hundred dollars for the debt fund, which is our biggest fund, so it’s going 
to be very small for this, I would think.   
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said those are revenues that are collected by the State and distributed 
to units that have property tax levies.  So whenever you see a property tax levy, you’re going to 
see Auto Excise, Commercial Vehicle Excise, and Financial Institutions Taxes. 
 
Council President Hunt said that’s the bank tax? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said yes. 
 
Council President Hunt said any other questions?  Thank you. 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Resolution No. 11-08 A Resolution Of The Common Council Of The City Of West Lafayette, 
Indiana, Approving An Order Of The Tippecanoe County Area Plan Commission Approving A 
Resolution Of The City Of West Lafayette, Indiana, Redevelopment Commission Designating 
and Declaring A Certain Area As An Economic Development Area To Expand The 
Kalberer/Cumberland/Blackbird Area And Amend The Economic Development Plan For The 
Kalberer/Cumberland/ Blackbird Area (Prepared by Baker & Daniels, LLP) 
 
Council President Hunt noted that Resolution No. 11-08 is to expand a TIF District and that a 
public informational meeting had been held on April 23 by Mr. Chinn and Mr. Pitman of Baker & 
Daniels which was very helpful.  She called on Mr. Brooks, Redevelopment Commission 
attorney, to address this matter. 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said Mr. Pitman will be here on Monday night to 
present this to the Council.  The Redevelopment Commission has passed a resolution to 
expand the KCB TIF District into the annexed area.  It’s two pieces of property that are owned 
by PRF, and it’s anticipated that it will be Phase III and Phase IV of the Research Park.  So we 
want to incorporate that into the TIF District, so that when Purdue Research Foundation is ready 
to start building the buildings and getting people to come in and getting jobs for the City, that we 
will have funds available to do the infrastructure work—the streets will need to be done up there, 
the sewers, and those types of things.  The Redevelopment Commission has passed their 
declaratory resolution.  It’s been to the APC, and it was passed through the APC.  Gerry 
[Councilor Keen], you were probably— 
 
Councilor Keen said it was passed unanimously. 



PRE-COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, MAY 1, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
page 7 of 10 

 

 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said so the next step is the Council.  It will then 
be published and go for the confirmatory and the public hearing before the Redevelopment 
Commission on the— 
 
Assistant Director of Development Grady said 22nd. 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said 22nd of May.  You have the maps and 
everything.  It’s all vacant land now.  At this point in time, and I’ve received the draft of the tax 
impact study, and there’s no change to taxes at the present time, because there is nothing 
there.  And so consequently, it doesn’t impact the taxes until something starts getting built up 
there, and we don’t know when that’s going to be.   
 
Councilor Burch said Tom [Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks], are they going to 
have better maps at the meeting than what’s been provided here? 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said if we have them.  Buz [Assistant Director of 
Development Grady]? 
 
Assistant Director of Development Grady said we can print them off in color. 
 
Councilor Burch said yes, please. 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said okay. 
 
Councilor Burch said so we’re just expanding this? 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said just expanding KCB. 
 
Councilor Burch said all right, so are we—? 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said we’re going north of Kalberer Road. 
 
Councilor Burch said we’re not moving anything?  We’re not moving the folks from Blackbird 
Farm?  We’re not—why not? 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said because we haven’t finished all the projects 
probably with the Blackbird Farms area.   
 
Councilor Burch said what are the projects? 
 
Assistant Director of Development Grady said there’s still some potential out there for basically 
trails-type of things and other type of things along that line.  There’s some preliminary thoughts 
on that, nothing really set in stone yet, and we felt it would sort of be premature to pull that 
whole area out of that at this point in time.  Do remember, however, that all residential 
improvement on that is passed through and goes back to the taxing jurisdictions, that it does not 
allow you to capture the incremental residential. 
 
Councilor Burch said right. 
 
City Attorney Burns said good point. 



PRE-COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, MAY 1, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
page 8 of 10 

 

 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said and, you know, we’ve taken U Farms out 
because we did the park and that, but as Buz [Assistant Director of Development Grady] says—
and Judy [Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes] had a question today, too—Amberleigh Village and 
Blackbird Farms we haven’t taken out because, frankly, the Development Department hasn’t 
finished all the projects that they hope or anticipate that may be done out in those areas. 
 
Councilor Burch said right.  Thank you. 
 
Council President Hunt said I had a question this afternoon of Buz [Assistant Director of 
Development Grady] and he answered it nicely, but I was confused by the legal description, 
because it talks about going through the Wiggins real estate, and I thought that meant the 
residence, but he says no, it doesn’t go through any residence.  There’s no residential— 
 
Assistant Director of Development Grady said no residential on here.  This is all land that’s 
owned by the Purdue Research Foundation and some right-of-way and the Trailhead Park, 
which is owned by the City.  There is another parcel out there, there is the childcare center that 
needs developed.  It sits on Lot 1 across from KCB.  So there is one facility there and that is 
Just Us Kids, and that was done through PRF, basically, that development. 
 
Councilor Keen said seeing where it was, I imagine it will still pass through. 
 
Assistant Director of Development Grady said yes, it was a pass-through, and that’s just a legal 
description from that whole farm area up there, so this is the name or whatever is concerned 
about, but there is no residential in this area.   
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said yes, just the Wiggins property.   
 
Council President Hunt said any questions about this? 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I just have one thing and, please, I defer to the attorneys to correct 
me.  The KCB TIF District was established before the prohibition against including residential in 
Tax Increment Finance Districts was enacted by the Legislature.  The Commission has an 
option of passing through— 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said right.  And we have— 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said the assessed valuation, and it has for several years.  It is not a 
requirement, and should there be a shortfall in the District, given its outstanding obligations, it 
would not be required to do that.  I didn’t want to bind the Commission— 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said right. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said beyond what they were bound to.  Given the amount of 
uncertainty in the tax base, and the delay in receipt of increment, I wanted to make sure that 
there was the full flexibility available to the Commission. 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said yes, the Redevelopment Commission—the 
last two or three years, Judy [Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes]?—has taken Blackbird Farms and the 
AV out of— 
 



PRE-COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, MAY 1, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
page 9 of 10 

 

Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said and Amberleigh. 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said and Amberleigh as pass-through.  But that 
was a decision, Vicki [Councilor Burch], that the Redevelopment Commission addresses. 
 
Councilor Bunder said all right.  Thank you very much. 
 
Council President Hunt said any other questions?  I have one more.  At Mr. Chinn and Mr. 
Pitman’s presentation, they talked about a non-voting School Board member.   
 
City Attorney Burns said yes. 
 
Council President Hunt said is there a deadline by the June 30 on that one? 
 
City Attorney Burns said yes. 
 
Council President Hunt said it’s in the process, I imagine. 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said yes, that’s a Mayor’s appointment from the 
School Board.  So I assume he will be making that.  July 1 is when the law goes into effect, so 
any time after July 1 he can do it. 
 
Council President Hunt said any other questions? 
 
Councilor Bunder said so it will be, though, from West Lafayette, probably? 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said I would assume so, Peter [Councilor 
Bunder], because— 
 
Councilor Bunder said do we have to appoint two people? 
 
[overtalking] 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said no.  He could, because the TIF Districts, you 
know, encompass—well, KCB probably is more TSC than it is WL.  And so that’s the decision 
that has to be made, although the County will probably appoint somebody from the County—
from TSC—on their board.   
 
Council President Hunt said they’re non-voting.   
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said right. 
 
Council President Hunt said I think that would be diplomatic, because both our School Boards 
have areas in the TIF Districts and— 
 
Councilor Bunder said well, we could encourage Redevelopment Commission— 
 
Council President Hunt said or the Mayor. 
 
Councilor Bunder said to reconsider.  And they don’t have to send anybody to another meeting.  
But they’ll feel the love.   



PRE-COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, MAY 1, 2008, CONTINUED 
 
 

 
page 10 of 10 

 

 
Council President Hunt said any other questions on this?  And this is one time, Mr. 
[Redevelopment Commission Attorney] Brooks? 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said yes, one time resolution, and then the public 
hearing will be May 22. 
 
Council President Hunt said any other questions?  Any other comments?   
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said Ann [Council President Hunt], that 
Redevelopment Commission meeting will be in the Council Chambers, just because we’re 
having the public hearing.  We don’t know how many people will be there, so we are moving 
that into Council Chambers for that particular meeting. 
 
Councilor Burch said and that was the 22nd?  At what time, please? 
 
Redevelopment Commission Attorney Brooks said 8:30 in the morning. 
 
Councilor Burch said thank you. 
 
Council President Hunt said any other comments? 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
OTHER ITEMS 
►Councilor Truitt said I’ll make one, just quick, statement.  I want to thank Allen [Assistant 
Director of Development Grady] for taking part.  We had representatives from Kent, Ohio, here 
today, the Mayor and City Council representatives, and individuals from the university 
campuses in that area.  They were with Purdue all day today, and they spent about an hour or 
so—an hour and a half—with us today.  Dennis Carson of Lafayette was here as well.  And they 
were very, very impressed with the engagement of the community, the engagement of the City 
with the University.  One of the individuals there said they had to come to West Lafayette to see 
how Purdue and West Lafayette work together, and when he left, he said, “You guys didn’t let 
me down.”  So I thought that that was a testament to everybody, so, Buz [Assistant Director of 
Development Grady], thank you for taking the time.  I appreciate it. 
 
Council President Hunt said good.  Thank you. 
 
►Councilor Truitt said one other thing.  Opening Day is Monday for the Little League, and John 
[Mayor Dennis] is throwing out the first pitch.  It was scheduled to be right at the start of the 
Council meeting, but I think we’re going to end up moving it to 5:30. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business at this time, Councilor Truitt moved for adjournment.  Motion 
was seconded by Councilor Burch and the meeting adjourned, the time being 5:02 p.m. 




